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1. STAFF CONTACT DETAILS 
 

 
Lecturer Room Phone E-mail Consultation 

Times 

Maurice Cashmere 
(Lecturer/ 
Tutor in charge) 

Quad 
2046 

9385-9559 m.cashmere@unsw.edu.au  by appointment 

 
Students are invited to consult with the lecturer in charge on any aspect of the 
course.  Consultation hours outside of class sessions are: 

• During Session:  by appointment. 

• At the End of Session: New consultation times will be announced in lectures 
and posted to Blackboard at the end of session during the lead up to the final 
exam. 

• Students may contact staff by e-mails regarding course administration 
matters, using only their official university email address as per University 
Email Policy.  E-mail is not an appropriate medium for learning. It is a poor 
substitute for personal consultation.  Do not expect staff to reply to e-mails 
which request extensive or substantive answers.  Teaching staff will use their 
discretion when consulted via e-mail and may instead invite students to meet 
in person during consultation hours to discuss complex questions, solutions to 
tutorial questions, past exam questions, etc.   

 
2. COURSE DETAILS 
 
2.1 Teaching Times and Locations 

 
Lectures Time Location 

Tuesdays 
(Commencing 28/2/12) 

11.00-2.00pm Old Main Building 145A 

 
Tutorial times and locations 
 
Tutorials commence in Week 3 and are conducted at the same venue as the 
lectures, following the lecture.  It is your responsibility to ensure that you have a 
formal Tutorial Guide.  This document will be distributed by the tutor/lecturer in the 
first class during Week 1 of session.   

 
2.2 Units of Credit 
 

This course is worth 6 credit points. 
 
2.3 Summary of Course  

This course examines the legal environment of banking and finance with particular 
reference to lending transactions and the securities taken by all financial 
institutions that lend for profit.  Topics include legal concepts underlying the bank-
customer relationship; duties of banker and customer; regulation of electronic 
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banking; the regulation and use of negotiable instruments (cheques, promissory 
notes and bills of exchange); regulation of financial markets; an examination of 
forms of finance and securities for projects and trade and legal options available 
for individual and companies in financial distress. 

 
Lecture material will be grounded in contemporary commercial and legal 
developments to illustrate the practical relevance of topics studied. 

 
2.4 Course Aims and Relationship to Other Courses 
 

Law of Banking and Finance is the main course offered by the School of Taxation 
and Business Law for students majoring in banking and finance.  CPA Australia 
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia have accepted UNSW as 
an approved tertiary institution for purpose of the membership qualifications.  
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) students will generally need to complete the 
following courses to satisfy profession requirements: 
 
• LEGT 1710 Business and the Law (equivalent to LEGT 1711 Legal 

Environment of Commerce and LEGT 2721  Business Transactions) 
• LEGT 2741 Business Entities and 
• LEGT 2751  Business Taxation (for CPA students, it is advisable to do tax law 

as part of your degree; otherwise you will need to undertake a tax law course 
at the CPA after you graduate) 

 
Students may chose to study LEGT 3761 Law of Banking and Finance as part of a 
Business Law co-major or a Taxation major.   
 
A Business Law co-major involves completing 7 courses (1 compulsory course 
LEGT 1710 Business and the Law; 3 options of Level 2 courses and 3 options of 
Level 3 courses).  The school offers, for example, the following options that build 
upon the knowledge gained in this course.   
 
Business Law 
• LEGT 4721 Special Topic in Business Law (for example, select issues in 

banking or finance may be the focus of research as a special topic) 
 

Taxation Law 
• LEGT 3757 Corporate Tax Strategy 
• LEGT 3755 Taxation of Business Entities 

 
 
2.5 Student Learning Outcomes 

By the end of this course, you should be able to: 

1. Provide an overview of the Australian banking and financial industry, the 
impact of deregulation, and the regulatory structure of the industry; 

2. understand the role of the office of the Financial Ombudsman and the 
Code of Banking Practice; 

3. understand legal concepts which underlie financial institutions/customer 
relationships and their respective legal duties; 

4. apply the law regulating cheques, bills of exchanges and other negotiable 
instruments;  
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5. examine legal issues in electronic banking; 

6. examine the various methods used by financial institutions and other 
creditors to secured lending and credit facilities (such as mortgages, 
guarantees and letters of comfort; 

7. understand legal options available to individuals and companies in 
financial distress; 

8. apply logical argument, in written or oral form, to legal problems that arise 
in modern banking and finance law 

 
The course also seeks to develop learning outcomes introduced in prior studies, 
including: 

9. confidence in oral and written communication of legal issues; 

10. the ability to analyse legal issues in a logical and structured way (i.e. to 
identify problems, research relevant sources, propose an outcome and 
identify possible challenges to the proposed outcome); 

11. the ability to resolve an issue in a logical and structured manner; and 

12. the ability to evaluate available legal options in their wider commercial 
context 

ASB Graduate Attributes 
This course contributes to your development of the following Australian School of 
Business Graduate Attributes, which are the qualities, skills and understandings 
we want you to have by the completion of your degree.  

 
Course Learning 
Outcomes 

ASB Graduate Attributes 

8-12 1. Critical thinking and problem solving 

9 2. Communication 

9 3. Teamwork and leadership 

12 4. Social, ethical and global perspectives 

8-12 5. In-depth engagement with relevant disciplinary knowledge 

8-12 6. Professional skills 

More information on the ASB Graduate Attributes and how they align with the UNSW 
Graduate Attributes (2010) is available on the ASB website (Learning and Teaching 
>Graduate Attributes). 

 
3.  LEARNING AND TEACHING ACTIVITIES 
 
3.1 Approach to Learning and Teaching in the Course 
 

This course is conducted with the aim of promoting student-centred learning.  This 
aim will be achieved by requiring students to engage with the topics presented in 
the course through independent research (via texts, journal articles and the 
internet) as part of the required weekly readings.  Whilst the assessment in this 
course is designed to test student’s knowledge of the key principles in banking 

http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/learningandteaching/aboutlearningandteaching/graduateattributes/Pages/default.aspx�
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/learningandteaching/aboutlearningandteaching/graduateattributes/Pages/default.aspx�
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and finance, the primary focus of the assessment regime is to test how well 
students can apply legal principles in a realistic commercial context. 

 
3.2 Learning Activities and Teaching Strategies 
 

The teaching strategies in this course adopts a combination of weekly lectures and 
tutorials (or seminars) designed to allow the delivery of a body of material and the 
opportunity thereafter to discuss and contextualise the material.  This is done with 
real life examples to aid student understanding.  The teaching strategies adopted 
aims to encourage critical thinking, deep and positive learning.  The course is also 
designed to cater for the learning needs of a diverse range of students.  It 
incorporates self review questions, found in the tutorial guide, to facilitate your own 
assessment of your progress in understanding the course materials.   
 
The tutorial program for this course serves several useful and practical purposes.  
It is designed to help consolidate, interpret and apply the lecture material.  
Students are taught to learn by understanding and application, not memorisation 
and regurgitation.  Solutions to tutorial questions are not provided to ensure that 
students participate actively in class to confirm their understanding, learn from their 
mistakes and receive feedback on the correct approach to the questions.  Students 
may see the lecturer or tutor during their consultation hours if further clarification 
regarding the tutorial questions is needed. 
 
Additionally, the tutorial program and assessment is also designed to allow 
students to develop the skills (both verbal and written) necessary to analyse 
problems which may arise in practice.  The guide is designed to allow each student 
to reach the goal of being able to apply theory, knowledge and problem solving 
technique to fact situations that may arise in company law.  It is essential that 
students learn to select the important issues in such fact situations and that they 
be able to advance, in discussion, a carefully analysed solution aimed at resolution 
of the factual situation based on both relevant legislation and case law.  

 
4. ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 Formal Requirements 

In order to pass this course, you must: 
 achieve a composite mark of at least 50; and 
 make a satisfactory attempt at all assessment tasks (see below). 

 
Where a student achieves a total mark of 50/100 or more in the course, but fails to 
demonstrate a satisfactory level of performance in each form of assessment, the 
student may be awarded a UF grade (unsatisfactory fail).  An example of 
unsatisfactory performance is failing to complete an assessment task (eg. failing to 
submit an assignment or failing to complete the final exam). 
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4.2 Assessment Details 
 

Assessment 
Task Weighting 

Learning 
Outcomes 
assessed 

ASB Graduate 
Attributes 
assessed 

Length Due Date 

Tutorial 
Assignment 15% 8-12 1-2 and 5-6 Maximum 

1,200 words 
Week 3-12 

Research 
Paper 25% 8-12 1, 4 and 5-6 2,000 words Week 9 

Mid-Session 
Exam 10% 1-4 1 and 5  Week 7 

Final Exam 50% 2-8 and 
10-12 1 and 5  Exam 

Period 

 
4.3 Assessment Format 

4.3.1 TUTORIALS 

The tutorials carry a 15% assessment which consists of: 
An individually written assessment of a tutorial question which will be allocated 
by the tutor in the first tutorial in Week 1, worth 15 marks.  This is a formal written 
assessment which involves legal research and analysis.  It has a minimum word 
limit of 1,000 words and maximum word limit of 1,200 words (see style guide and 
cover sheet attached to tutorial guide, distributed in tutorials in Week 1, for further 
details).  

 
4.3.2 MID-SESSION EXAM 
 
A mid-session examination will be held on Tuesday, 3 April 2011 at 11.00 am (ie, 
in week 6) at the same venue as the lectures.  The mid-session examination is 
worth 10 marks.   
 
The examination contains of twenty (20) multiple-choice questions worth 0.5 marks 
each (total of 10 marks).   
 
The mid-session exam is a closed book examination and covers material lectured 
in weeks 1 through 5 inclusive.  The examination will be 30 minutes in length.   
 
Students are to be seated at the venue by 11:05 am at which time the examination 
commences.  The examination finishes at 11.35 am.  Students who arrive late to 
the examination will be admitted, but will be required to finish the examination at 
11:35 am.  Students must bring their student card, a pencil and an eraser to the 
exam room. 
 
Note: After a 10 minute break, class will resume: 
 
The mid-session exam is compulsory. Students who do not sit the mid-session 
exam as a result of illness or misadventure must advise the Lecturer-in-Charge of 
their circumstances in writing with accompanying supporting documentation within 
three (3) days of the mid-session exam.  Applications are dealt with by 
administrative staff not the lecturer. Students whose circumstances are accepted 
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as a valid reason for not sitting the mid-session exam will be offered a 
supplementary mid-session exam. All other students who did not sit the mid-
session exam will be awarded no (0) marks for the mid-session exam. 

 
4.3.3  RESEARCH PAPER 
 
A written research assignment topic will be handed out to students in class in 
Week 2 and is due in Week 12 at the commencement of that class during that 
week.  
 
This assessment will account for 25% of the final mark.  It has a minimum word 
limit of 1,800 words and a maximum word limit of 2,000 words.  Further details will 
be announced in class by the lecturer in Week 2. 
 
4.3.4 FINAL EXAM 
The final examination is worth 50% of the course assessment and is an open book 
exam.  It will consist of problem questions and essay questions.  It will be 2 hours 
long and cover the entire course material, including tutorial materials, unless 
advised otherwise by the lecturer. The final examination will be held in the 
regularly scheduled University examination period. Further information concerning 
the exam and its format will be announced in lectures between Weeks 10-11. 

 
4.4 Assignment Submission Procedure  

The written tutorial assessment, together with the attached cover sheet (see 
tutorial guide) must be handed over to the tutor at the commencement of class in 
which it is due. Similarly, the Research Paper must be handed over to the lecturer 
at the commencement of the class in which it is due. 

 
4.5 Late Submission 

Late lodgment of any assessment or any other unauthorised method of lodgment 
(for ex, by email or slipping the tutorial/research paper under the office door of the 
lecturer/tutor/secretary), will attract an immediate penalty deduction of 3 marks 
and thereafter 2 marks for each day late.  Extensions will not be granted lightly 
and may only be granted in exceptional circumstances, supported by detailed 
documentation and are dealt with by the administrative staff not the lecturer.   

 
 
Quality Assurance 
The ASB is actively monitoring student learning and quality of the student experience in all its 
programs. A random selection of completed assessment tasks may be used for quality 
assurance, such as to determine the extent to which program learning goals are being 
achieved. The information is required for accreditation purposes, and aggregated findings will 
be used to inform changes aimed at improving the quality of ASB programs. All material used 
for such processes will be treated as confidential and will not be related to course grades. 
  
5. ACADEMIC HONESTY AND PLAGIARISM 
The University regards plagiarism as a form of academic misconduct, and has very strict rules 
regarding plagiarism. For UNSW policies, penalties, and information to help you avoid 
plagiarism see: http://www.lc.unsw.edu.au/plagiarism/index.html as well as the guidelines in the 
online ELISE and ELISE Plus tutorials for all new UNSW students: 
http://info.library.unsw.edu.au/skills/tutorials/InfoSkills/index.htm. 
 

http://www.lc.unsw.edu.au/plagiarism/index.html�
http://info.library.unsw.edu.au/skills/tutorials/InfoSkills/index.htm�
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To see if you understand plagiarism, do this short quiz: 
http://www.lc.unsw.edu.au/plagiarism/plagquiz.html 

For information on how to acknowledge your sources and reference correctly, see: 
http://www.lc.unsw.edu.au/onlib/ref.html 

For the ASB Harvard Referencing Guide, see the ASB Referencing and Plagiarism webpage 
(ASB >Learning and Teaching>Student services>Referencing and plagiarism)   
 
 
6. COURSE RESOURCES 

 
• Tyree, A: Banking Law in Australia (7th

Note:  Students are strongly advised to use the latest edition of prescribed 
materials to ensure accuracy. Due to a continuous process of law reform and 
judicial pronouncements in a rapidly changing corporate environment, it is 
unadvisable to use previous editions of the prescribed materials. 

 ed, 2011, LexisNexis/Butterworths) 

 
• Online Resources - Blackboard 

Students are encouraged to check the course website for announcements and the 
following resources designed to assist students with their study of this course: 

• course outline and tutorial guide 
• assessment details (venue for mid-session exam; sample questions for 

mid-session exam; mid-session exam results; format of final exam) 
• relevant lecture slides; 
• cases and articles; 
• useful links 

Blackboard is designed to assist you with your studies in the course but it does not 
replace the lectures, readings or tutorials.  Login to Blackboard via the TELT 
gateway at http://blackboard.telt.unsw.edu.au 

 
• General texts and/or casebooks 

There are many references available which could assist students in various subject 
areas covered in the course.  Some of these are listed below; others will be 
supplied by the lecturer:- 

• Tyree & Weaver, Weerasooria’s Banking Law and the Financial System in 
Australia, 6th

• Everett & McCracken, Banking & Financial Institutions Law, 5th ed, 
LBC,2001 

 ed, LexisNexis, 2006 

• Horgan, S, Finance Law of Australia , Butterworths, 2001(out of print) 
• Mallesons Stephen Jaques, Australian Finance Law, Thomson, Sydney, 

2008 

• Weaver, Craigie et al The Law Relating to Banker & Customer in 
Australia, LBC (loose leaf system only) 

• Weaver & Kingsley, Bank & Lending Practice, 4th ed, LBC (available in 
PDF format only : order on-line from website ISBNe9780455217437) 

• Weerasooria, Bank Lending and Securities in Australia, 5th

 

 ed,  
Butterworths, 2000 (out of print) 

• Web References 
• Australasian Legal Information Institute (http://www.austlii.edu.au) 
• Federal (Commonwealth) government entry point (search engine and 

portfolios) http://www.fed.gov.au  

http://www.lc.unsw.edu.au/plagiarism/plagquiz.html�
http://www.lc.unsw.edu.au/onlib/ref.html�
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/learningandteaching/studentservices/resources/Pages/referencingandplagiarism.aspx�
http://blackboard.telt.unsw.edu.au/�
http://www.austlii.edu.au/�
http://www.fed.gov.au/�
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• Federal (Commonwealth) Parliament (bills, legislation, committees etc 
http://www.aph.gov.au  

• Federal Parliament legal search engine: www.lawsearch.gov.au 
• Australian Securities and Investment Commission: www.asic.gov.au 
• FindLaw Data Base and Search Engine: www.findlaw.com.au 
• Australian Stock Exchange: www.asx.com.au 
• Sydney Futures Exchange: www.sfe.com.au 
• Commonwealth Legislation News: www.lawsearch.gov.au 
• Australian Consumer and Competition Commission: www.accc.gov.au 
• Financial Ombudsman Service (FOS): www.fos.org.au (Banking and 

Finance Division) 
• AUSTRAC and the Financial Transactions Act: www.austrac.gov.au 
• Australasian Institute of Banking & Finance: www.aibf.com.au 
• Australian Government Treasury: www.treasury.gov.au 
• Australian Productivity Commission: www.pc.gov.au 
• Australian Prudential Regulation Authority: www.apra.gov.au 
• Department of Finance and Administration: www.dofa.gov.au 
• Australian Bankers’ Association: www.bankers.asn.au 

 

• Specific topic reference texts 

• Baxt, Black & Hanrahan, Securities Industry Law, 7th edition, 2008, 
Butterworths.  

 
 
7.  COURSE EVALUATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
Each year feedback is sought from students about the courses offered in the School 
and continual improvements are made based on this feedback. In this course, we will 
seek your feedback through end of semester CATEI evaluations.  Previous student 
feedback indicated a greater weighting to be given to the research assignment.   As a 
result of this feedback, the research assignment is now worth 25% of the course. 
 
 
8. STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND CONDUCT 
 
Students are expected to be familiar with and adhere to university policies in relation to 
class attendance and general conduct and behaviour, including maintaining a safe, 
respectful environment; and to understand their obligations in relation to workload, 
assessment and keeping informed.  
 
Information and policies on these topics can be found in the ‘A-Z Student Guide’: 
https://my.unsw.edu.au/student/atoz/A.html. See, especially, information on 
‘Attendance and Absence’, ‘Academic Misconduct’, ‘Assessment Information’, 
‘Examinations’, ‘Special Consideration’, ‘Student Responsibilities’, ‘Workload’ and 
policies such as ‘Occupational Health and Safety’. 
 
8.1 Workload 
 

It is expected that you will spend at least ten hours per week studying this course. 
This time should be made up of reading, research, working on exercises and 

http://www.lawsearch.gov.au/�
http://www.asic.gov.au/�
http://www.findlaw.com.au/�
http://www.asx.com.au/�
http://www.sfe.com.au/�
http://www.lawsearch.gov.au/�
http://www.accc.gov.au/�
http://www.fos.org.au/�
http://www.austrac.gov.au/�
http://www.aibf.com.au/�
http://www.treasury.gov.au/�
http://www.pc.gov.au/�
http://www.apra.gov.au/�
http://www.dofa.gov.au/�
http://www.bankers.asn.au/�
https://my.unsw.edu.au/student/atoz/A.html�


[LEGT 3761 Law of Banking and Finance]   9 

problems, and attending classes. In periods where you need to complete 
assignments or prepare for examinations, the workload may be greater. 

Over-commitment has been a cause of failure for many students. You should take 
the required workload into account when planning how to balance study with 
employment and other activities.  

 
8.2  Attendance 
 

Your regular and punctual attendance at lectures and seminars is expected in this 
course. University regulations indicate that if students attend less than eighty per 
cent of scheduled classes they may be refused final assessment.  

 
8.3 Special Consideration and Supplementary Examinations 
 

You must submit all assignments and attend all examinations scheduled for your 
course. You should seek assistance early if you suffer illness or misadventure 
which affects your course progress.  

 
General Information on Special Consideration: 

1. All applications for special consideration must be lodged online through 
myUNSW within 3 working days of the assessment (Log into myUNSW 
and go to My Student Profile tab > My Student Services channel > Online 
Services > Special Consideration). Then submit the originals or certified 
copies of your completed Professional Authority form (pdf - download here) 
and other supporting documentation to Student Central. For more 
information, please study carefully the instructions and conditions at: 
https://my.unsw.edu.au/student/academiclife/StudentCentralKensington.html. 

2. Please note that documentation may be checked for authenticity and the 
submission of false documentation will be treated as academic misconduct. 
The School may ask to see the original or certified copy.  

3. Applications will not be accepted by teaching staff. The lecturer-in-charge 
will be automatically notified when you lodged an online application for 
special consideration. 

4. Decisions and recommendations are only made by lecturers-in-charge. 
5. Applying for special consideration does not automatically mean that you will 

be granted a supplementary exam or other concession. 
6. Special consideration requests do not allow lecturers-in-charge to award 

students additional marks. 

 
Information for ASB Undergraduate Courses: 
 
ASB Policy on requests for Special Consideration for Final Exams: 
The policy of the School of Taxation and Business Law is that the lecturer-in-
charge will need to be satisfied on each of the following before supporting a 
request for special consideration: 

1. Does the medical certificate contain all relevant information? For a medical 
certificate to be accepted, the degree of illness, and impact on the student, 

https://mail.unsw.edu.au/owa/redir.aspx?C=e3db0a8e922b43a497a2dbbe8b17b348&URL=https%3a%2f%2fmy.unsw.edu.au%2fstudent%2facademiclife%2fProfessionalAuthority.pdf�
https://mail.unsw.edu.au/owa/redir.aspx?C=e3db0a8e922b43a497a2dbbe8b17b348&URL=https%3a%2f%2fmy.unsw.edu.au%2fstudent%2fatoz%2fSpecialConsideration.html%23Supportingdocumentation�
https://mail.unsw.edu.au/owa/redir.aspx?C=e3db0a8e922b43a497a2dbbe8b17b348&URL=https%3a%2f%2fmy.unsw.edu.au%2fstudent%2facademiclife%2fStudentCentralKensington.html�
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must be stated by the medical practitioner (severe, moderate, mild). A 
certificate without this will not be valid. 

2. Has the student performed satisfactorily in the other assessment items? 
Satisfactory performance would require at least satisfactory completion in 
each assessment item specified in the Course Outline and meeting the 
obligation to have attended 80% of tutorials. 

3. Does the student have a history of previous applications for special 
consideration? A history of previous applications may preclude a student 
from being granted special consideration. 

 
Special Consideration and the Final Exam: 
 
Applications for special consideration in relation to the final exam are considered 
by an ASB Faculty panel to which lecturers-in-charge provide their 
recommendations for each request. If the Faculty panel grants a special 
consideration request, this will entitle the student to sit a supplementary 
examination. No other form of consideration will be granted. The following 
procedures will apply: 

1. Supplementary exams will be scheduled centrally and will be held 
approximately two weeks after the formal examination period. The dates for 
ASB supplementary exams for Session 1, 2012 are: 

 11 July 2012 – exams for all Schools other than Accounting and Economics 
 If a student lodges a special consideration for the final exam, they are stating 

they will be available to sit the examination. Supplementary exams will not be 
held at any other time. 

2. Where a student is granted a supplementary examination as a result of a 
request for special consideration, the student’s original exam (if completed) 
will be ignored and only the mark achieved in the supplementary examination 
will count towards the final grade. Failure to attend the supplementary exam 
will not entitle the student to have the original exam paper marked and may 
result in a zero mark for the final exam. 

 
If you attend the regular final exam, you are extremely unlikely to be granted a 
supplementary exam. Hence if you are too ill to perform up to your normal 
standard in the regular final exam, you are strongly advised not to attend. 
However, granting of a supplementary exam in such cases is not automatic. You 
would still need to satisfy the criteria stated above. 

 
The ASB’s Special Consideration and Supplementary Examination Policy and 
Procedures for Final Exams for Undergraduate Courses is available at: 
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/currentstudents/resources/forms/Documents/supple
mentaryexamprocedures.pdf. 
 
Special consideration and assessments other than the Final exam: 
 
Students who miss the deadline for any assessment task  (other than the Final 
Exam) as a result of illness or misadventure must advise the Lecturer-in-Charge 
of their circumstances in writing with accompanying supporting documentation 

http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/currentstudents/resources/forms/Documents/supplementaryexamprocedures.pdf�
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/currentstudents/resources/forms/Documents/supplementaryexamprocedures.pdf�
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within three (3) days of the due date of the assessment task.  The criteria, as 
spelt out above in 8.3 of the course outline, will be used to assess any special 
consideration application. This will be dealt with by the administrative staff. 

 
8.4  General Conduct and Behaviour 
 

You are expected to conduct yourself with consideration and respect for the 
needs of your fellow students and teaching staff.  Conduct which unduly disrupts 
or interferes with a class, such as ringing or talking on mobile phones, is not 
acceptable and students may be asked to leave the class. More information on 
student conduct is available at: 

 
https://my.unsw.edu.au/student/atoz/BehaviourOfStudents.html 

8.5  Occupational Health and Safety  
 

UNSW Policy requires each person to work safely and responsibly, in order to 
avoid personal injury and to protect the safety of others. For more information, 
see http://www.ohs.unsw.edu.au/. 

 
8.6  Keeping Informed 
 

You should take note of all announcements made in lectures, tutorials or on the 
course web site.  From time to time, the University will send important 
announcements to your university e-mail address without providing you with a 
paper copy.  You will be deemed to have received this information. It is also your 
responsibility to keep the University informed of all changes to your contact 
details. 

 
9. ADDITIONAL STUDENT RESOURCES AND SUPPORT  
The University and the ASB provide a wide range of support services for students, 
including: 

• ASB Education Development Unit  (EDU) 
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/learningandteaching/studentservices/Pages/default.as
px  
Academic writing, study skills and maths support specifically for ASB students. 
Services include workshops, online and printed resources, and individual 
consultations. EDU Office: Room GO7, Ground Floor, ASB Building (opposite 
Student Centre); Ph: 9385 5584; Email: edu@unsw.edu.au  

• Capturing the Student Voice:  An ASB website enabling students to comment on 
any aspect of their learning experience in the ASB. To find out more, go to the 
Current Students/Resources/Student Feedback page here. 

• Blackboard eLearning Support: For online help using Blackboard, follow the links 
from  www.elearning.unsw.edu.au to UNSW Blackboard Support / Support for 
Students. For technical support, email: itservicecentre@unsw.edu.au; ph: 9385 
1333 

• UNSW Learning Centre (www.lc.unsw.edu.au ) 
Academic skills support services, including workshops and resources, for all UNSW 
students.  See website for details. 

• Library training and search support services:   
http://info.library.unsw.edu.au/web/services/services.html  

• UNSW IT Service Centre: :  https://www.it.unsw.edu.au/students/index.html 

https://my.unsw.edu.au/student/atoz/BehaviourOfStudents.html�
https://my.unsw.edu.au/student/atoz/BehaviourOfStudents.html�
http://www.ohs.unsw.edu.au/�
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/learningandteaching/studentservices/Pages/default.aspx�
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/learningandteaching/studentservices/Pages/default.aspx�
mailto:edu@unsw.edu.au�
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/currentstudents/resources/studentfeedback/Pages/default.aspx�
http://www.asb.unsw.edu.au/currentstudents/resources/studentfeedback/Pages/default.aspx�
http://www.elearning.unsw.edu.au/�
mailto:itservicecentre@unsw.edu.au�
http://www.lc.unsw.edu.au/�
http://info.library.unsw.edu.au/web/services/services.html�
https://www.it.unsw.edu.au/students/index.html�
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Technical support for problems logging in to websites, downloading documents 
etc.: UNSW Library Annexe (Ground floor); Ph: 9385 1333. 

• UNSW Counselling and Psychological Services  
(http://www.counselling.unsw.edu.au) 
Free, confidential service for problems of a personal or academic nature; and 
workshops on study issues such as ‘Coping With Stress’ and ‘Procrastination’.  
Office:  Quadrangle Building, Level 2, East Wing ;  Ph: 9385 5418 

• Student Equity & Disabilities Unit  (http://www.studentequity.unsw.edu.au) 
Advice regarding equity and diversity issues, and support for students who have a 
disability or disadvantage that interferes with their learning.  Office: Ground Floor, 
John Goodsell Building; Ph: 9385 4734   
 
 

10. COURSE SCHEDULE 
 
Week Beginning Topic Events and submissions 

1 27 February Regulatory Environment First lecture 28 February 

2 5 March Nature of Bank-Customer Relationship  

3 12 March Nature of Bank-Customer Relationship  

4 19 March Negotiable Instruments  

5 26 March Garnishee Orders/Mareva Orders  

6 2 April Electronic Banking                                                                                                                                     Mid Session Examination –  

Material Examinable Weeks 1-5 

Mid-semester break from Friday, 6 April to Sunday, 15 April 2012 

7 16 April Corporate Equity Raising  

8 23 April Corporate Debt Raising  

9 30 April Finance and Security: mortgages  

10 7 May Finance and Security: guarantees              

11 14 May Debt/Equity Regime in Tax  

12 21 May Corporate Insolvency Research Papers Due 

13 28 May   

Examination period from Friday, 8 June to Monday, 25 June 2012 

 
 
 

http://www.counselling.unsw.edu.au/�
http://www.studentequity.unsw.edu.au/�
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TOPICS: 
Week 1  

• Impact of Wallis reforms 
Regulatory Environment of Banking and Finance 

• Banking Act 1959 (Cth) 
• Function of the Reserve Bank of Australia; Australian Prudential Regulation 

Authority (APRA) and Australian Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC). 
• Australian Securities and Investments Commission Act 2001 (Cth) 
• 

• N.A. Retails Solutions Pty Ltd v St George Bank Ltd [2010] FCA 290 
Role of the Code of Banking Practice 

• Role and powers of the Financial  Ombudsman Service (FOS): Banking and 
Finance Division 

• Consumer Credit Regulation: National Credit Code 
• Impact of GFC 
Read: Chapters 1 and 10 of prescribed text 
 
Week 2  

• Foley v Hill (1848) 9ER 1002 
Legal Nature of Bank-Customer Relationship 

• Joachimson v Swiss Bank Corp [1921] 3 KB 110 
• Commissioners of Taxation v English, Scottish and Australian Bank Ltd [1920] AC 

683 
• Consequences of the debtor-creditor relationship 
 
 
Weeks 2-3 

• Duty of secrecy and exceptions (statutory and common law) 
Duties of the Banker/Lender 

• Tournier v National Provincial and Union Bank of England [1924] 1 KB 461 
• Citibank Ltd v Federal Cmr of Taxation  (1988) 83 ALR 144 
• ASC v Zarro (1991) 6 ACSR 385 
• Proceeds of Crime Act 
• Financial Transaction Reports Act 1988 (Cth) 

• R v Hannes (2000) 158 FLR 359; (2002) 172 FLR 1 
 

• Duty of care , banker’s reference and exclusion clauses 
• Hedley Byrne & Co Ltd v Heller [1964] AC 465 
• Commercial Banking Co of Sydney Ltd v Brown & Co (1972) 126 CLR 337 

 
• Duty of care when giving financial advice  

• Hedley Byrne  & Co Ltd v Heller [1964] AC 465 
• MLC v Evatt (1986) 112 CLR 556; Shaddock v Parramatta City Council (1981) 

150 CLR 225 
• Spice v Westpac (1990) ATPR 41-024 
• Chiarabaglio v Westpac (1991) ATPR 46-067 

 
• Lender’s duty of care when lending or extracting securities 

• Politarhis v Westpac Banking  Corporation [2009] SASC 96 
• Fast Fix Loans Pty Ltd v Mladenko Samardzic [2011] NSWSC 19 
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• Duty to question a valid mandate 
• Selangor United Rubber Estates Ltd v Cradock (No 3) [1968] 1 WLR 1555 
• Lipman Gorman v Karpanale Ltd [1991] 2 AC 548 

Read: 
• Chapter 2 and 5 of prescribed text 

 

• Macmillan duty to exercise reasonable care when drawing cheques 
Duties of the Customer 

o London Joint Stock Bank Ltd v Macmillan and Arthur [1918] AC 777 
o Commonwealth Trading Bank of Australia v Sydney Wide Stores Pty Ltd  

(1981) 55 ALJR 574 
• Greenwood duty to notify bank promptly of forgeries 

• Greenwood v Martins Bank Ltd [1933] AC 51 
• Brown v Westminster Bank Ltd [1964] 2 Lloyd’s Rep 187 
• Tina Motors Pty Ltd v ANZ [1977] VR 205 

• Is there a wider duty? Ambit of customer’s duties – Cheques Act 1986 (Cth). 
• Applicability of the Tai Hing legal principles – 

• Policy considerations (NAB v Hokit (1996) 27 NSWLR 377) 

Read: Chapter 6 of prescribed text 
 
Week 4  
  
Negotiable Instruments 
• Concept, distinctions, definitions, usage, parties and liabilities 
• Cheques (Cheques Act 1986 Cth) and case law 

• Commissioners of the State Savings Bank of Victoria v Permewan Wright & Co 
Ltd (1914) 19 CLR 547 

• Universal Guarantee Pty Ltd v National Bank of Australasia Ltd [1965] NSWR 
342 

• Commonwealth Trading Bank v Reno Auto Sales Pty Ltd [1967] VR 790 
• Commissioners of Taxation v English, Scottish and Australian Bank Ltd [1920] 

AC 683 
• Voss v Suncorp-Metway Ltd (No 2) [2003] QCA 252 
• Marfani & Co Ltd v Midland Bank Ltd [1968] 1 WLR 968 (note: FTRA) 

• Bills of Exchange ( Bills of Exchange Act 1909 Cth) 
• Promissory Notes 

 
Read: Chapters 7, 8 and 4 of prescribed text  
 
 
Week 5  
 
Mareva Orders 

o Mareva Compania Nariera SA of Panama v Int Bulk Carriers SA [1980] 1 All ER 
213; 

o Jackson v Sterling Industries Ltd (1987) 162 CLR 612 
o Cardile v LED Builders Pty Ltd [1999] HCA 18 
o Her Majesty’s Commissioners of Customs and Excise v Barclays Bank Plc 

[2006] UKHL 28 
o Fourie v Le Roux (2007) UKHL 1  
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Garnishee Orders 
• Aktas v Westpac Banking Corp Ltd [2010] HCA 25 

 
Read: Chapters 2 and  5 of prescribed text 
 
 
Week 6 
 
Mid-Session Multiple Choice Exam  
 
Legal Issues in Electronic Banking 
• EFT Code of Conduct (2001; last amended 2008) 

• Release of Revised Code anticipated in mid-2011 
• Nature of transactions covered 
• Liability of parties (rules and procedures) 
• Case Studies [Financial  Ombudsman Service (FOS) Reports] 
 
Read: Chapter 10 of prescribed text 
 
 
Week 7 
 
Corporate Equity Raising: Legal Regulation of Fundraising 

• Policy considerations: Chapter 6 D of Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) 
• Definition of securities 
• Types of disclosure documents and statutory exemptions 

o ASIC v Maxwell (2006) 59 ACSR 373 
• Regulation of Prospectuses 
• Due Diligence requirements 
• Prohibitions, Liabilities and Defences 

o Cadence Asset Management Pty Ltd v Concept Sports Ltd (2005) 56 
ACSR 309 

 
Read: Harris, Hargovan and Adams, Australian Corporate Law (2009, 2nd

 

 ed, LexisNexis): 
Chapter 9 

 
Week 8 
 
Corporate Debt Raising and Securities 

• Factors influencing choices (equity v debt finance) 
• Types of shares (ordinary v preference) 

o Nature and entitlements 
• Types of debentures 
• Nature of charge; Distinction between fixed and floating charges; Practical utility 

of floating charges 
• Registration requirements: Corporations Act 2001 (Cth); Legal significance of 

registration 
• Priorities scheme (competing charge-holders) 

 
Law Reform: Personal Property Securities Act 2009 (Cth) [PPS Act] 
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• Passed by Commonwealth Parliament in Nov 2009; due to come into 
effect in May 2011 (postponed till October 2011) 

• www.ag.gov.au (Personal Property Securities Reform) 
 
Read: Chapter 11 in prescribed text on ‘Company Securities’; and 
Harris, Hargovan and Adams, Australian Corporate Law (2009, 2nd

 

 ed LexisNexis): 
Chapter 10 

 
Week 9 
 
Finance and Security: Mortgages 

• Real property v Personal property 
• Fixtures 

o APA Ltd v Coroneo (1938) 38 SR (NSW) 701 
• Estates in land (estates in fee simple v life estate; joint tenancy v tenancy in 

common) 
• Title Systems 

o ‘old system/deeds system’ 
o Torrens system 

 Chandra v Perpetual Trustees Victoria Ltd [2007] NSWSC 694 
• Legal v equitable mortgages 
• Caveats 
• Priorities 
• Remedies 

o Pendlebury v Colonial Mutual Life Assurance Society (1912) 13 CLR 
767 

o Commercial and General Acceptance Ltd v Nixon [1981] HCA 70 
o National Commercial Banking Corp of Australia v Solonowski (1984) 

NSW ConvR 55-194 
• Conveyancing Act  1919 (NSW) [overview] 

 
 
Read: Chapter 11 in prescribed text on ‘Mortgages’ 
 
  
Week 10 
 
 Finance and Security: Guarantees 

• Nature/Definition 
o Sunbird Plaza Pty Ltd v Maloney [1988] HCA 11 
o “all moneys” guarantee 

• Legal requirements 
o National Credit Code formalities 

• Rights and liabilities of guarantors 
• Avoidance of guarantees  

o Misrepresentation 
 Commercial Bank of Australia Ltd v Amadio (1983) 151 CLR 447 
 Nobile v National Australia Bank Ltd (1987) ASC 55-580 

o Duty of disclosure? 
 Hamilton v Watson (1845) 12 CL&Fin 109 
 Commercial Bank of Australia Ltd v Amadio (1983) 151 CLR 447 
 Behan v Obelon Pty Ltd (1985) 157 CLR 326 

http://www.ag.gov.au/�
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 North Shore Ventures Ltd v Anstead Holdings Inc [2010] EWHC 
1485 

o Undue influence 
 Bank of New South Wales v Rogers (1941) 65 CLR 43 

o Unconscionable conduct 
 Commercial Bank of Australia Ltd v Amadio (1983) 151 CLR 447 
 Australian Consumer Law (formerly TPA) 
 National Credit Code 
 Contracts Review Act 

• West v AGC (Advances) Ltd (1986) 5 NSWLR 611 
• Perpetual Trustee Co Ltd v Khoshaba [2006] NSWCA 41 
• Fast Fix Loans Pty Ltd v Mladenko Samardzic [2011] 

NSWSC 19 
• High Court Principle in Yerkey v Jones (1939) 63 CLR 649; Garcia v National 

Australia Bank (1998) 194 CLR 395 
• UK Position: Barclays Bank Plc v O’ Brien [1993] 3 WLR 786 
• Grounds for discharge 

o Ankar Pty Ltd v National Westminster Finance (Australia) Ltd (1987) 70 
ALR 641 

Read: Chapter 11 in prescribed text on Guarantees and Enforcement  
 
 
Week 11 
 
Debt/Equity divide 
 
Tax Issues: 
 
What is debt? 
 

• Emu Bay Railway Co Ltd v Federal Commissioner of Taxation (1944) 71 CLR 596 
at 608 

• Federal Commissioner of Taxation v Radilo Enterprises Ltd (1997) 97 ATC 4151  
• Federal Commissioner of Taxation v Firth (2002) 120 FLR 450 at 454 
• Division 974 Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (Cth)  

  
 
Week 12  
Financial Distress: Bankruptcy  
• Key provisions of the Bankruptcy Act 1966 (Cth) 

o Administration 
o Acts of bankruptcy 

 Barton v DFC of Taxation [1974] 131 CLR 370 
 Boles v Official Trustee in Bankruptcy [2001] FCA 639 

o Debtors and creditors petition 
o Effects of bankruptcy (personal and on property) 
o Voidable transactions [case studies] 

 Undervalued transactions (s 120) 
• Vale v Sutherland [2009] HCA 26 

 Transfers to defeat creditors (s 121) 
• Re Barnes; Ex parte Stapleton [1962] Qd R 231 
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• Cannane v J Cannane Pty Ltd [1998] HCA 26 [note: 
Marcolongo v Chen [2011] HCA 3 

• Trustees of the Property of Cummins v Cummins [2006] HCA 
6 

 Avoidance of preferences (s 122) 
• Queensland Bacon Pty Ltd v Rees [1966] 115 CLR 266 
• G&M Aldridge Pty Ltd v Walsh [2001] HCA 27 

 
o Alternatives to bankruptcy (Part IX and X) 
o Discharge  

 
Read: Materials distributed in class 
 
Financial Distress: Insolvency 
• Key provisions of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) [Overview] 
• Liquidation 

o Alternatives to Liquidation (Overview) 
 Creditors scheme of arrangements 
 Voluntary administration 
 Receivership 

 
Harris, Hargovan and Adams, Australian Corporate Law (2009, 2nd

 

 ed LexisNexis): 
Chapter 24 
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